



CONSTITUTION

School Sport NT Inc

1.	NAME.....	2
2.	AIMS.....	2
3.	DEFINITION OF TERMS	2
4.	MEMBERSHIP.....	3
5.	EFFECT OF CONSTITUTION.....	3
6.	INCONSISTENCY BETWEEN CONSTITUTION AND ACT	3
7.	FUNCTIONS OF COUNCIL	3
8.	ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	5
9.	LIMITATIONS	6
10.	FINANCES.....	6
11.	MEETINGS	7
12.	CO-OPTED MEMBERS.....	12
13.	CASUAL VACANCIES.....	12
14.	OBSERVERS	13
15.	GRIEVANCE, COMPLAINTS, EXPULSION.....	13
16.	AWARDS AND LIFE MEMBERSHIP.....	14
17.	PROXIES FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING 14	
18.	NON ATTENDANCE.....	15
19.	NATIONAL EVENTS.....	15
20.	CHANGES TO THIS CONSTITUTION.....	15
21.	COMMON SEAL	15
22.	DISSOLUTION	15
23.	APPENDIX A.....	17

1. NAME

- 1.1. The name of the association shall be **School Sport Northern Territory Incorporated**, known as "**School Sport NT Inc**".

2. AIMS

- 2.1. Provide a range of appropriate **School Sport NT** programs for school students. These **School Sport NT** programs are open to all NT students aged 10 – 19 years in the year of competition.
- 2.2. Enhance the place and status of **School Sport NT** programs as integral components of NT Curriculum Framework.
- 2.3. Ensure that educational outcomes form the basis for all **School Sport NT** programs and that they are appropriate for the developmental stages of students.
- 2.4. Contribute to students' healthy lifestyles and lifelong learning by providing opportunities to enhance quality of life and increase interest and participation rates in school sport.
- 2.5. Promote opportunities, recognize participation and celebrate outcomes.

3. DEFINITION OF TERMS

- 3.1. "**Council**" shall mean the body of teachers elected to office from Clusters and Annual Conference and, in addition, the Executive Officer of **School Sport NT**, ex-officio.
- 3.2. "**Management Board**" shall mean the four (4) teachers who have been elected to office; President, Vice-President, two (2) Management Board Members and, in addition, the Executive Officer of **School Sport NT**, ex-officio.
- 3.3. "**Exchange Group**" (teachers representing "12 years and under" students) and "**Championship Group**" (teachers representing "19 years and under" students) recommend on matters of policy to **School Sport NT Council** through Annual Conference.
- 3.4. "**School**" shall mean all government and non-government schools eligible to participate in **School Sport NT** Events.
- 3.5. "**Cluster**" shall mean a geographic area within which schools, as determined by **Council**, are grouped for the purpose of Northern Territory competition. Currently there are six (6) **School Sport NT** Clusters.
- 3.6. "**Member**" shall mean any person registered with the Teacher Registration Board of the Northern Territory.
- 3.7. "**Chief Executive (CE)**" shall mean the Officer or Permanent Head of Northern Territory Department of Employment, Education and Training (NTDEET).
- 3.8. "**Event**" shall mean any Exchange or Championship or combination of these.

3.9. **“Association”** shall mean the body of volunteers known as **“School Sport NT Inc”**

3.10. **“Act”** shall mean the Northern Territory Associations Act

4. **MEMBERSHIP**

4.
New Legislation

4.1. All persons currently registered with the Teacher Registration Board of the Northern Territory are eligible.

4.2. Application for Membership

4.2.1. To apply to become a member of the association a person must submit a written application for membership to the committee, in a form approved by the committee

4.3. Approval of Committee

4.3.1. The committee must consider any application made under Clause 4.2 at the next available committee meeting and must accept or reject the application at that meeting or the next.

4.3.2. If an application is rejected, the applicant may appeal against the decision by giving notice to the Secretary within 14 days after being advised of the rejection.

4.3.3. If an applicant gives notice of an appeal against the rejection of his or her application, the Committee must reconsider the application at the next committee meeting after receipt of the notice of appeal.

4.3.4. If after reconsidering as application the Committee reaffirms its decision to reject the application, the decision is final.

5. **EFFECT OF CONSTITUTION**

5.
New Legislation

5.1. This constitution binds every member and the **Council** to the same extent as if every member and the **Council** had signed and sealed this Constitution and agreed to be bound by it.

6. **INCONSISTENCY BETWEEN CONSTITUTION AND ACT**

6.
New Legislation

6.1. If there is any inconsistency between this constitution and the Act, the Act prevails.

7. **FUNCTIONS OF COUNCIL**

7.1. Subject to the Act, the **Council** shall make decisions based on the guiding principles of this Constitution and the Policies and resolutions formulated at Annual Conference. The program will be managed by Council between meetings.

- 7.2. **Council** shall implement policy, and make rules and guidelines governing the manner in which the aims of **School Sport NT** and the directions and resolutions of Annual Conference are carried out and put into effect.
- 7.3. **Council** shall provide information and receive advice and documentation about **School Sport NT**.
- 7.4. **Council** shall arbitrate in matters of dispute, resolve any matter and action recommendations referred to it.
- 7.5. **Council** shall be responsible for the management of the funds and accounts of **School Sport NT**.
- 7.6. **Council** shall advise CE, NTDEET at the time of vacancies, regarding the position descriptions of the Executive Officer and all other designated NTDEET positions appointed by the CE, NTDEET.
- 7.7. **Council** shall develop and make recommendations regarding policy about sport in schools to the CE, NTDEET.
- 7.8. **Council** shall, with the approval of the, CE NTDEET, borrow or raise money in such manner as may be deemed proper.
- 7.9. **Council** shall liaise with government departments, private organisations, national sports associations and appropriate international sports bodies.
- 7.10. **Council** shall liaise with, and ensure cooperation between **School Sport NT** and community sport organizations.
- 7.11. **Council**, on behalf of **School Sport NT**, shall determine general policy in relation to **School Sport NT** and make policy recommendations about **School Sport NT** to CE, NTDEET.
- 7.12. Where there is a departure from established practice, only the President as directed by **Council** shall make any necessary approach, pertaining to **School Sport NT**, to the CE, NTDEET.
- 7.13. **Council** shall oversee matters of policy pertaining to **School Sport NT** programs at cluster, Northern Territory and Interstate levels.
- 7.14. **Council** shall administer cluster, Northern Territory, Interstate and International **School Sport NT** Championships and Exchanges, or combination of these.
- 7.15. **Council** shall recommend to CE, NTDEET the extent to which **School Sport NT** Exchange and Championship teams shall participate in Interstate and International School Sport Events.
- 7.16. **Council** shall print and publish newspapers, periodicals, books or leaflets that Council deems necessary for the promotion of **School Sport NT**.
- 7.17. **Council** shall provide specific professional learning support for **School Sport NT** initiated programs.

- 7.18. **Council** shall do all other things as are incidental to, or conducive to, the attainment of the aims of **School Sport NT** and so exercise its powers towards those aims.

8. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- 8.1. The President of **School Sport NT** shall
- 8.1.1. provide leadership to **Council** and its members.
 - 8.1.2. act as spokesperson of **School Sport NT** and represent **Council** on official occasions.
 - 8.1.3. preside at all **School Sport NT** meetings; **Council, Management Board, Annual General, Special General** and all other meetings, except **Cluster Meetings**, as determined by the **Council**.
 - 8.1.4. undertake a consultative and intermediary role in any issue until resolution.
 - 8.1.5. maintain regular contact with and on behalf of the **Council**.
 - 8.1.6. supervise the duties of the Executive Officer.
- 8.2. The Vice President of **School Sport NT** shall
- 8.2.1. assist in **Council** leadership.
 - 8.2.2. deputize for the President as required.
- 8.3. The Executive Officer of **School Sport NT** shall
- 8.3.1. be the Administrative Officer of **School Sport NT**.
 - 8.3.2. carry out Executive Officer duties as determined in the Position Description developed for the Executive Officer of **School Sport NT**.
 - 8.3.3. be an ex officio member of all **School Sport NT** committees and sub committees. This position carries voting rights as for other members of **School Sport NT** groups.
 - 8.3.4. provide professional leadership in all aspects of the management of **School Sport NT**.
 - 8.3.5. manage **School Sport NT** finances.
 - 8.3.6. together with Management Board and **Council**, prepare and present the annual budget at the **Annual General Meeting**.
 - 8.3.7. act as Public Officer of **School Sport NT**.
 - 8.3.7.1. ensure that documents are filed with the Commission of Consumer Affairs in accordance with sections 23, 28 and 45 of the Act
 - 8.3.7.2. keep a current copy of the constitution of **School Sport NT**.

8.3.7 New Legislation

- 8.4. The members of the Management Board of **School Sport NT** shall
- 8.4.1. manage the directions and resolutions of **Council** subject to this Constitution.
 - 8.4.2. carry out constitutional requirements.
 - 8.4.3. carry out decisions of **Council**.
 - 8.4.4. manage **School Sport NT**.
 - 8.4.5. Disclosure of Interest
 - 8.4.5.1. Any Management Board member who has a direct or indirect pecuniary interest in a contract with the **Council** must disclose the nature and the extent of the interest to the Management Board in accordance with Section 31 of the Act.
 - 8.4.5.2. The disclosure must be recorded in the minutes of the Meeting.

8.4.5 New Legislation

9. LIMITATIONS

- 9.1. **School Sport NT** is part of NTDEET and as such the operation of Council shall be subject to the decisions made by the CE, NTDEET.
- 9.2. **School Sport NT** representation interstate is restricted to the programs offered by School Sport Australia.

10. FINANCES

- 10.1. Financial Year
 - 10.1.1. The financial year of **School Sport NT** shall be deemed as beginning 1 January and ending on 31 December of each year.
- 10.2. Auditor
 - 10.2.1. **School Sport NT** shall each year appoint and approve an Auditor to hold office until the conclusion of the financial year of **School Sport NT**.
 - 10.2.2. In each financial year, the Books of **School Sport NT** shall be examined by the Auditor, at the conclusion of the **School Sport NT** financial year.
- 10.3. Accounts
 - 10.3.1. True and accurate accounts shall be kept by the Executive Officer of all sums of money received and expended in accordance with agreed procedures set by **Council**.
 - 10.3.2. All payments shall be made by cheque and signed by any two of the approved signatories as determined by **Council**.
 - 10.3.3. All general records, account books and records of receipt and expenditure connected with the business of **School Sport NT** shall be open to inspection.

10.4. Financial Reports

- 10.4.1. A monthly financial statement shall be presented at **Management Board Meetings**.
- 10.4.2. These monthly reports shall be endorsed at **Meetings of Council**.
- 10.4.3. Audited annual financial statements shall be presented at the **Annual General Meeting**.

10.5. Expenses

- 10.5.1. **Council** shall have the authority to grant representatives of **School Sport NT** expenses in conjunction with the performance of duties, in accordance with the budget for same, as endorsed at **Council Meetings**.

10.6. Non-Profit Clause

- 10.6.1. The property and income of **School Sport NT** shall be applied solely toward the Aims of **School Sport NT**. No part of that property or income may be paid or otherwise distributed, directly or indirectly, to members or affiliates, except in good faith in the promotion of those aims.

10.6 New Legislation

11. MEETINGS

- 11.1. **School Sport NT** functions through input from planned meetings of members, with provision for special purpose meetings as determined necessary. These are as follows:
 - 11.1.1. Cluster Meetings
 - 11.1.2. Exchange Group Meetings
 - 11.1.3. Championship Group Meetings
 - 11.1.4. Annual Conference
 - 11.1.5. Annual General Meeting
 - 11.1.6. Special General Meetings
 - 11.1.7. Council Meetings
 - 11.1.8. Management Board Meetings

11.2. Meeting and voting procedures.

- 11.2.1. Meeting and voting procedures at the above noted Association meetings (9.0), unless otherwise specified, are conducted as follows.
- 11.2.2. Meeting Agendas shall be made available in writing (includes electronic format) to the appropriate members prior to the meetings.
- 11.2.3. A consensus model is the preferred option for all decisions of **School Sport NT** meetings, especially those of policy and budgeting.
 - 11.2.3.1. Notwithstanding 11.2.3, when it is necessary, for expediency, to vote on a decision, a simple majority of those members present (including votes of those members who have presented their proxy to AGM or SGM according to 17.0 of this constitution) shall decide the matter.
 - 11.2.3.2. At any meeting, a resolution or recommendation put to the vote shall be decided by a show of hands unless a request for a secret ballot is made by at least two-thirds of the members present.
 - 11.2.3.3. An exemption to 11.2.3.2 is made when voting at Annual Conference for the membership of Management Board. (See 11.3.3.3)
 - 11.2.3.4. In the case of a tied vote the Chair, who does not vote on other occasions, shall make a casting vote.
- 11.2.4. Lack Of Quorum
 - 11.2.4.1. For all meetings of the Association, if within thirty minutes after the time specified in the notice of holding a meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting stands adjourned to the same time on the same day in the following week and at the same place.
 - 11.2.4.2. If within thirty minutes after the time appointed for the resumption of an adjourned meeting a quorum is not present, the members who are present, in person or by proxy, may proceed with the business of the meeting as if a quorum were present.
- 11.2.5. Standing Orders, as set by **Council**, shall apply to all meetings.
- 11.2.6. The Executive Officer of **School Sport NT** shall be a member of all meetings of the Association, ex-officio.
- 11.2.7. For **School Sport NT** meetings teleconferencing and/or video conferencing shall be used as determined appropriate.

11.2.4 New Legislation

11.3. Meetings to be called by **School Sport NT**

11.3 Annual Conference

11.3.1. **Cluster Meetings** shall be held as determined by each cluster. Clusters determine the nature, timing, need and format of meetings as best suits the context of their cluster.

11.3.1.1. At least one (1) **Cluster Meeting** shall be held each semester comprising representation from each school in the cluster.

11.3.1.2. At least two (2) **Cluster Board Meetings** shall be held each term.

11.3.2. **Exchange Group** and **Championship Group Meetings** occur only during **Annual Conference** to consider recommendations from relevant events and to elect respective Management Board Representatives.

11.3.3. **Annual Conference** shall be held in Term Four of each year, for a minimum of 2 days duration, as required to attend to planning, recommendations and business. This is the policy-determining forum for **School Sport NT**.

11.3.3 Annual Conference

11.3.3.1. Each **Cluster** shall be supported by **School Sport NT** to send six (6) delegates to **Annual Conference** as determined by each Cluster Board.

11.3.3.2. Each **Cluster** is entitled to two (2) voting representatives from within their delegates.

11.3.3.3. Management Board attend but do not vote, except for the President who is entitled to a casting vote only.

11.3.3.4. Two months prior to Annual Conference, nominations shall be called from individual members for the positions of President and Vice President.

11.3.3.4.1. One (1) month prior to Annual Conference the nominations are notified to Clusters for consideration and instruction to representatives for voting decisions at Annual Conference.

11.3.3.4.2. Voting is carried out by secret ballots for each position.

11.3.3.4.3. Each of the six (6) clusters have two (2) votes (abstentions are not allowed).

11.3.3.4.4. The Executive Officer shall have a vote to ensure an outcome.

11.3.3.4.5. A retiring elected officer, or a life member, shall conduct this election and act as Returning Officer.

11.3.3.5. Two months prior to Annual Conference nominations shall be called from clusters for the positions of Exchange and Championship representatives on the Management Board.

11.3.3.5.1. One month prior to Annual Conference the nominations are notified to Clusters for consideration and instruction to representatives for voting decisions at Annual Conference.

11.3.3.5.2. At separate Exchange Management Group and Championship Management Group meetings voting is carried out by secret ballots for each position by each respective Management Group.

11.3.3.5.3. Each of the six (6) clusters have one (1) vote (abstentions are not allowed).

11.3.3.5.4. The Executive Officer shall have a vote to ensure an outcome.

11.3.3.5.5. A retiring elected officer, or a life member, shall conduct this election and act as Returning Officer.

11.3.4. **Annual General Meeting** is the official meeting for confirming matters of finance and policy and shall be held no later than the end of March each year.

11.3.4.1. The Annual General Meeting shall be notified to all members fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting.

11.3.4.2. A quorum shall be fifteen (15) members.

11.3.4.3. Business other than that notified may be considered if at least two thirds of members present agree.

11.3.4.4. The Agenda of the Annual General Meeting shall be:

- Welcome
- Attendance
- Apologies
- Minutes of previous Annual General Meeting
- The Annual Report
- Auditor's Report
- Nomination of **School Sport NT** Auditor
- Any other Reports deemed appropriate by **Council** and duly notified beforehand
- Announcement of **Council** Membership
- Notices of Motion

11.3.4.5. All members are entitled to vote.

11.3.5. **Special General Meetings** are called as follows.

- 11.3.5.1. When the **Council** deems it necessary.
- 11.3.5.2. When 15 or more members of **School Sport NT**, representing at least four (4) clusters present a signed requisition to the **Council**.
- 11.3.5.3. Special General Meetings require twenty-eight (28) days notice in writing.
- 11.3.5.4. A Special General Meeting shall be convened within 28 days of the request being advised to all members and the only business of the meeting should be that which has been advertised as a notice of motion.
- 11.3.5.5. For Special General Meetings the quorum shall be 20 members of **School Sport NT**.
- 11.3.5.6. All members are entitled to vote.

11.3.6. **Council Meetings** shall be held at least four (4) times per year with at least one (1) meeting to be held out of Darwin.

11.3.6 Annual Conference

11.3.6.1. Council shall be made up as follows.

11.3.6.1.1. Clusters shall nominate one (1) representative to **Council** for a 12-month period through a nomination process determined by the cluster.

11.3.6.1.1 Annual Conference

11.3.6.1.1.1. Cluster Representatives are able to nominate a proxy should they not be able to attend a **Council Meeting**. This is not able to be the Cluster Physical Education Coordinator.

11.3.6.1.1.2. Term of Office for Cluster nominated members is 12 months from AGM to AGM.

11.3.6.1.2. The President and Vice President elected at Annual Conference who also serve on the Management Board (see 11.3.3.4)

11.3.6.1.3. Two members elected to represent the Exchange and Championship Groups at Annual Conference who also serve on the Management Board (see 11.3.3.5).

11.3.6.1.4. The Executive Officer of **School Sport NT** shall be an ex officio member.

11.3.6.1.5. Each Cluster is entitled to one (1) vote.

11.3.6.1.6. Management Board with each member are entitled to a vote, except for the Chairperson who is entitled to a casting vote only.

11.3.6.1.6 Annual Conference

11.3.6.1.6 New Legislation, recommended best practice
--

11.3.6.2. A quorum for **Council** shall be eight (8) members of whom one must be the President or Vice President or, in the case of inability of both officers to attend, a nominee of either the President or Vice-President.

11.3.6.3. **Council** Membership shall be announced at the **Annual General Meeting**.

11.3.6.4. Term of Office for **Annual Conference** elected members is 12 months from AGM to AGM, with a provision that new members are coopted to Management Board immediately after their election and the retiring members of Management Board remain on the Management Board until the AGM.

11.3.6.5. Retiring Annual Conference elected members may stand for re-election by nomination prior to **Annual Conference**.

11.3.6.6. Access to **Council** Information

11.3.6.6 New Legislation

11.3.6.6.1. The following must be available for inspection by members

- a copy of this constitution
- minutes of general meetings
- annual reports and annual financial reports.

11.3.7. **Management Board** meets at least eight (8) times per year.

11.3.7.1. The Management Board shall consist of five (5) members, four (4) being elected at Annual Conference being the President and Vice President and two (2) Management Board members. The fifth member is the Executive Officer of **School Sport NT**, ex officio.

11.3.7.2. A quorum shall be three that must include the President or the Vice President and the Executive Officer.

11.3.7.3. All Management Board members have voting rights.

11.3.7.4. Management Board Terms of Office (refer 11.3.6.4).

12. CO-OPTED MEMBERS

12.1. **Council** shall have the power to co-opt members and/or others to **Council** for a specific advisory role and for a specified period of time. Co-opted members do not have voting rights.

13. CASUAL VACANCIES

13.1. In the event an elected member of the Management Board is unable to continue representing their group, the Management Board shall recommend an appropriate replacement, with due recognition of the person's representation, for confirmation by **Council** for the remaining period of that term of office.

14. OBSERVERS

- 14.1. Observers and guests shall be eligible to attend **Council** meetings, may speak only when invited to, by the Chair, but do not have voting rights.

15. GRIEVANCE, COMPLAINTS, EXPULSION

15. New Legislation

- 15.1. A member may raise a grievance or complaint about a Management Board member, the Management or another member of **School Sport NT**.

- 15.1.1. This clause applies to Grievance and Dispute Procedures between:

- 15.1.1.1. a member and another member or
- 15.1.1.2. a member and the Management Board

- 15.1.2. Within 14 days after the dispute comes to the attention of the parties to the dispute, they must meet and discuss the matter in dispute, and, if possible, resolve the dispute.

- 15.1.3. If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute at the meeting, or if a party fails to attend the meeting, then the parties must, within 20 days after the meeting, hold another meeting in the presence of a mediator.

- 15.1.4. The mediator must be

- 15.1.4.1. a person chosen by agreement between the parties or
- 15.1.4.2. in the absence of agreement for a dispute between a member and another member; a person appointed by the Board or
- 15.1.4.3. for a dispute between a member and the Management Board; a person who is a mediator appointed or employed by the department administering the Act.

- 15.1.5. A member of **School Sport NT** can be a mediator.

- 15.1.6. The mediator cannot be party to the dispute.

- 15.1.7. The parties to the dispute must, in good faith, attempt to settle the dispute by mediation.

- 15.1.8. The mediator, in conducting the mediation, must

- 15.1.8.1. give the parties to the mediation process every opportunity to be heard
- 15.1.8.2. allow due consideration by all parties of any written statement submitted by any party; and
- 15.1.8.3. ensure natural justice is accorded to the parties to the dispute.

- 15.1.9. The mediator must not determine the dispute.

15.1.10. If the mediation process does not result in the dispute being resolved the parties may seek to resolve the dispute in accordance with the Act or otherwise at law.

15.2. The Management Board has the right to suspend or expel a member because his or her conduct is detrimental to the interests of the Association.

15.3. The Management Board must give notice of the proposed suspension or expulsion to the member.

15.4. The process must meet the accepted norms of natural justice.

16. AWARDS AND LIFE MEMBERSHIP

16.1. Individual **School Sport NT** members may nominate a person (member or non-member) considered worthy to have an award, or Life Membership, bestowed upon them.

16.2. Volunteer Awards shall be determined by Council each year according to the current policy.

16.3. A nominee, for Life Membership of **School Sport NT** must have proven meritorious service in at least the following:

16.3.1.1. 10 years minimum contribution,

16.3.1.2. contributed at school/Cluster, NT, and Interstate or Management Board levels

16.3.1.3. demonstrated contribution to multifaceted **School Sport NT** programs including more than a single sport; offered across both Exchange and Championship Programs.

16.3.2. **Council** shall consider the nomination and upon unanimous support, present the nomination to the Annual General Meeting.

16.3.3. A two-thirds majority of members present and voting at an Annual General Meeting of **School Sport NT** may confer Life Membership upon any person whose services are deemed to have met the criteria.

16.3.4. Life Membership does not in itself give voting rights.

16.3.5. Life Membership shall be formally conferred at an appropriate time at a gathering of members of **School Sport NT** and presented by the Minister or a Senior Officer of NTDEET (or their delegate).

16.3.6. Life Members names are appended to this Constitution. (See Appendix A)

17. PROXIES FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

17.1. In the event a member is absent for any reason and unable to attend they may designate a proxy to attend or send a proxy in writing.

17.2. Written proxies are to be presented to the Chair prior to the commencement of the meeting on a motion of which notice has been given, provided that a signed written authority is presented.

18. NON ATTENDANCE

- 18.1. Failure of a representative or an elected member to attend three (3) consecutive meetings without notification shall result in the member being required to show cause as to why the position they hold should not be declared vacant.

19. NATIONAL EVENTS

- 19.1. Responsibilities; Northern Territory officials and students participating in any School Sport Australia activity are the direct responsibility of the CE, NTDEET and therefore the Minister for Education.
- 19.2. Rules and Guidelines; Northern Territory officials and students attending all approved School Sport Australia events shall abide by the Rules and Guidelines as detailed in the relevant Sections of the School Sport Australia By-Laws for that sport.

20. CHANGES TO THIS CONSTITUTION

- 20.1. Alteration; This Constitution may be altered by resolution passed by a two-thirds majority of members present and entitled to vote at an Annual General Meeting or a Special General Meeting.
- 20.2. Notice of Motion; Notice of the proposed alteration to the Constitution must be forwarded to the Executive Officer six (6) weeks prior to the date set for the Annual General Meeting or Special General Meeting.
- 20.3. Advice of Meeting to Change Constitution; The Executive Officer shall distribute the Notice of Motion to all members not less than twenty-eight (28) days prior to the meeting, when calling the meeting.
- 20.4. Amendments to Notice of Motion; No amendment, other than editorial, to a notified motion to alter or to amend the Constitution may be introduced or decided at the Annual General Meeting or Special General Meeting.

21. COMMON SEAL

- 21.1. The common seal of the **Council** must not be used without the express authority of the Management Board and every use of that common seal must be recorded in the minutes.
- 21.2. The affixing of the common seal of the Council must be witnessed by any two (2) of the following:
- 21.2.1. the President
 - 21.2.2. the Vice President
 - 21.2.3. the Executive Officer
- 21.3. The common seal of the **Council** must be kept in the custody of the Executive Officer.

22. DISSOLUTION

- 22.1. Dissolution Process; **School Sport NT** may only be dissolved at a Special General Meeting, provided that

21. New Legislation

- 22.1.1. all members have been advised in writing of the proposed dissolution not less than twenty-eight (28) days before the meeting
 - 22.1.2. the proposed dissolution is assented to by not less than two thirds of the members present (Quorum as at 11.3.5.5).
- 22.2. In the event of the dissolution of **School Sport NT**, any funds or property remaining shall be transferred as determined by the CE, NTDEET.

SCHOOL SPORT NT LIFE MEMBERS

Wally Mauger	1979
Sue Barry	1983
Les Rauert	1985
Russell Totham	1992
Brian Deslandes	1994
Helen Taylor	1994
Brian Chase	1996
Neil McCormack	1999
David Brabham	2004
Sally Bruyn	2004
Ian Duncan	2004